
Appendix C 
From: Nigel Carter  
Sent: 04 August 2022 17:09 
To: Hopson, Lisa <lisa.hopson@gravesham.gov.uk> 
Cc  
Subject: Arena Food Centre, 13 Ordnance Terrace, Chatham ME4 6PS - LSC hearing 30 August 2022 
 

Dear Ms. Hopson 
 

I have been instructed by Atlas Licensing to represent Mr. Ali Capar at the Licensing Sub Committee, 
scheduled for 9.30am on 30 August 2022. I would like to formally confirm my attendance at this 
hearing together with Mr. Caliskan of Atlas Licensing; however I understand that the applicant 
himself is unable to do attend as he will not be in the country on that date. 
 

Could I ask that all future correspondence/papers, or any further objections, be copied into me as 
well please? 
 

In light of the objections received so far, and the concerns raised by Responsible Authorities, Atlas 
Licensing have consulted with Mr. Capar, and we wish to advise you of the following: 
 

- My client wishes to amend the hours for Sale by Retail of Alcohol from 24 hours Monday – 
Sunday, to 08.00-00.00 Sunday to Thursday, and 08.00 – 01.00 Friday & Saturday.  

 

The following additional conditions are also proposed to promote the Licensing Objectives and allay 
the concerns of Responsible Authorities: 
 

• CD7 – no miniature bottles of spirits of 20cl or below shall be sold from the premises after 
23.00 hours (other than ‘non-standard’ times as shown on premises licence 
Medway/13/01067/PREM) 

• After 23.00 hours no single cans or bottles of beer, lager or cider shall be sold or supplied at 
the premises (other than ‘non-standard’ times as shown on premises licence 
Medway/13/01067/PREM) 

• Any alcohol sold or supplied (for consumption off the premises) must be in a sealed 
container. 

• CD34 – All staff shall be trained in recognising signs of drunkenness, how to refuse service 
and the premises’ duty of care. Documented records of completed training shall be kept for 
each member of staff. Training shall be regularly refreshed at no greater than 6 monthly 
intervals. Training records shall be made available for inspection upon request by a Police 
Officer or an Authorised Officer of the Authority. 

• PN38 – A direct telephone number for the manager of the premises shall be publicly 
available at all times the premises are open. The telephone number is to be made available 
to residents in the vicinity. 

• CH4 – A Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises 

• CH10 – The premises shall display prominent signage indicating that it is an offence to buy, 
or attempt to buy, alcohol for a person under the age of 18. 

• Signage to be erected asking for customers to refrain from littering the highway outside, or 
in the vicinity, of the premises. 

 

Please acknowledge receipt of this email, and forward the Committee Papers to me once they are 
finalised. If I can be of any further assistance, please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 

Kind regards Nigel 


